
Page 1 of 3 
 

   

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

 
AGENDA 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2015  

 
6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET 

 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION 
 

15C‐0041. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

15C‐0042.  Roll Call 

15C‐0043.  Establishment of Quorum 
15C‐0044.  Pledge of Allegiance 
15C‐0045.  Reports of Standing Committees 
15C‐0046.  Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

 No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 

  
  

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0047.  Discussion and Possible Action on a Class M Bed and Breakfast Liquor License 
Application by Robert J. Mahan and Douglas M. Mahan, DBA Aldrich Guest 
House, 900 Third Street, Galena 

4‐8 

 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA15‐03 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0048.  Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of January 26, 
2015  

9‐14 

Page 1 of 73



Page 2 of 3 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0049. 
 
Approval of a Request by Midwest Medical Center to Conduct the Third Annual 
Sprint Into Spring 5K/10K Race on Saturday, April 11, 2015 on the Galena River 
Trail 

15‐16 

 
15C‐0050. 

 
Approval of a Festival Permit  for the “Corkless Galena” Event Hosted by the 
Northern Illinois Wine Growers, Ltd., June 27, 2015 in Depot Park 

17‐19 

 
  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
15C‐0033. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Downtown Sidewalk Deterioration Study 
by MSA Professional Services 

20‐34  

 
15C‐0034. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Possible Changes to the Galena City 
Council Rules of Procedure as they Relate to Tabling, Deferment, and 
Postponement 

35‐55 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
15C‐0051. 

  
Presentation of Fiscal Year 2014 Annual Audit by O’Connor Brooks & Co. 

 ‐‐ 

 
15C‐0052. 

 
Monthly Water and Sewer System Report from American Water 

‐‐ 

 
15C‐0053. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of an Amendment to 
an Annexation Agreement Previously Entered into for a Development Known 
as “Cobblestone Crossing” 

58‐63 

 
15C‐0054. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Proposal by the Galena‐Jo Daviess 
County Historical Society to Name the Pedestrian Bridge to Grant Park after 
Herman H. Kohlsaat 

64‐66 

 
15C‐0055. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Re‐appointment of Craig Brown 
(Chairperson), Carl Johnson, Robert Brotheridge, and William Gherts to the 
Historic Preservation Commission with Terms Expiring February 28, 2017 

‐‐ 

Page 2 of 73



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 

 
CALENDAR INFORMATION 

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. February 11  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council  Mon. February 23  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. March 5  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 
Posted: Thursday, February 5, 2014 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By:   

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0056. 
 
Warrants  

67‐73 

 
15C‐0057. 

 
Alderpersons’ Comments 

 

 
15C‐0058. 

 
City Administrator’s Report  

 

 
15C‐0059. 

 
Mayor’s Report   

15C‐0060. 
 
Adjournment 

 

Page 3 of 73



Page 4 of 73



Page 5 of 73



Page 6 of 73



Page 7 of 73



Page 8 of 73



Regular Board Meeting  26 January 2015 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 26 JANUARY 2015 
 
 

15C-0021 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 26 January 2015.  
 
15C-0022 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, 
Renner 
 
Absent:  Bernstein 
 
15C-0023 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
15C-0024 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.   
 
15C-0025 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
Turner Hall – Fach reported the heat has been turned down since the installation of the new 
storm windows.   
 
15C-0026 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Bill Grosshans, 418 Harrison – Grosshans asked that the City be open and transparent about 
the deer culling costs.  Grosshans recommended specifically, written and oral reports at each 
meeting outlining what city employees were involved, salaries, including fringe benefits, vehicles 
used, how many were killed, and what type of deer were killed and how much venison has been 
donated to the food pantry.   

 
CONSENT AGENDA CA15-02 

 
15C-0027 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
JANUARY 12, 2014 
 
Motion:   Kieffer moved, seconded by Greene, to approve Consent Agenda CA15-02 as 
presented.    
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Bernstein 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
15C-0433 – RECONSIDERATION OF THE OCTOBER 27, 2014 DENIAL OF THE FIRST 
AMENDMENT TO THE ANNEXATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA AND 
LINDA PLUYM, KENNETH PLUYM, AND RICK HOCHMAN FOR TERRITORY COMMONLY 
KNOWN AS “COBBLESTONE CROSSING” 

Page 9 of 73



Regular Board Meeting  26 January 2015 

 
Motion:   Painter moved, seconded by Fach, to reconsider the denial of the first amendment to 
the Annexation Agreement between the City of Galena and Linda Pluym, Kenneth Pluym, and 
Rick Hochman for territory commonly known as “Cobblestone Crossing” because of new 
information.   
 
Discussion:  Council agreed the new plan is good for everyone.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Bernstein 
            
  The motion carried.   
 
Motion:  Painter moved, seconded by Fach, to direct staff to prepare an ordinance to execute 
an amendment to the Annexation Agreement between the City of Galena and Linda Pluym, 
Kenneth Pluym, and Rick Hochman for territory commonly known as “Cobblestone Crossing”.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Painter, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Bernstein 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0011 – FIRST READING AN ORDINANCE VACATING APPROXIMATELY 0.11 ACRES 
OF STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY ADJACENT TO 604 MUIR STREET 
 
Motion:  Painter moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve the first reading and waive the second 
reading of an ordinance vacating approximately 0.11 acres of street right-of-way adjacent to 604 
Muir Street, item 15C-0011.   
 
Discussion:  Fach voiced concern the remaining portion of that street would be landlocked with 
no tax revenue.  He questioned if there would be a way for the city to force the other property 
owner to purchase the property.  Moran advised he could contact them to see if they might be 
interested.  Nack stated the City could vacate the property and it would then go back to the 
adjacent landowners.   
 
The petitioner is agreeable to $1.10 per square foot.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Painter, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Bernstein 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
15C-0029 – ANNUAL REPORT BY THE GALENA COMMNITY GARDEN 
 
Richard Babcock, President, Galena Community gave the annual report on the Galena 
Community Garden.   
 
Renner commended everyone involved with the gardens.   
 

Page 10 of 73



Regular Board Meeting  26 January 2015 

15C-0030 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE 
CREATION OF A SINGLE COUNTYWIDE CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU 
 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Painter, to approve a resolution supporting the creation of 
a single countywide Convention and Visitors Bureau, item 15C-0030.   
 
Discussion:  Council thanked Chris Hamilton for getting the ball rolling on this.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Painter, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Bernstein 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0031 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A COUNTY ZONING REQUEST BY 
PAUL AND DEBORAH STUDTMANN AND NATHAN & JESSICA STUDTMANN, PO BOX 
6101, GALENA, FOR A SUBDIVISION AND MAP AMENDMENT TO SUBDIVIDE PROPERTY 
AT 9408 W. POWDER HOUSE HILL ROAD, GALENA INTO TWO PARCELS AND REZONE 
BOTH FROM AGRICULTURAL TO RESIDENTIAL 
 
Motion:  Painter moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve the county zoning request by Paul and 
Deborah Studtmann and Nathan & Jessica Studtmann, PO Box 6101, Galena, for a subdivision 
and map amendment to subdivide property at 9408 W. Powder House Hill Road, Galena into two 
parcels and rezone both from agricultural to residential.     
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Bernstein 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0032 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A CONTRACT FOR DESIGN AND 
ENGINEERING OF THE GALENA CANOE AND KAYAK LAUNCH 
 
Bids: 
 

IIW, P.C. $8,100 
 
Motion: Painter moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve a contract for design and engineering of 
the Galena Canoe and Kayak Launch to IIW, P.C. in the amount of $8,100.     
 
Discussion:  The money for this is included in the grant.   
 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Bernstein 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0033 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON DOWNTOWN SIDEWALK 
DETERIORATION STUDY BY MSA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Kieffer, to postpone discussion and possible action on the 
Downtown Sidewalk Deterioration Study by MSA Professional Services to the next regular 
meeting.    

Page 11 of 73



Regular Board Meeting  26 January 2015 

 
Discussion:  None     
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Bernstein 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0034 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON POSSIBLE CHANGES TO THE 
GALENA CITY COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE AS THEY RELATE TO TABLING, 
DEFERMENT, AND POSTPONEMENT 
 
Discussion:  Council discussed and agreed it would be helpful to have a glossary of terminology 
that should be used when forming motions.   
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Painter, to request that staff prepare a glossary of terms for 
Robert’s Rules of Order for the next meeting.       
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Painter, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Bernstein 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0035 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Greene, to approve the Warrants as presented, item 15C-
0035.         
 
Discussion: None.    
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Painter, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Bernstein 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0036 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Thank you – Painter thanked VisitGalena for the drone slideshow presentation.   
 
Deer Culling – Painter noted the deer culling will continue to be an issue.  She apologized for not 
being present at the last meeting.  She stated she is disappointed in the decision as she doesn’t 
feel it is a solution.  She would like to continue to look at a way in which we can continue to 
educate the Council and citizens as to options to address the problem.  She advised a process 
has been put in place for reporting.   
 
Downtown Sidewalk Study – Lincoln stated he would like to have someone present from MSA 
at the next meeting for questions.   
 
American Water – Lincoln stated he would like to have a report from American Water sometime 
soon.   
 
Deer Committee – Fach stated he thinks it is a good idea to form a new deer committee 
somehow.  They could give a report to the Council on how it is going and include pertinent 
details.  He recommended including 3 people who are in favor of the culling and 3 people who are 
opposed to the culling.   

Page 12 of 73



Regular Board Meeting  26 January 2015 

 
Audit – Fach stated he would like to have a presentation on the audit.   
 
Drone – Fach recommended getting a drone for the deer.   
 
15C-0037 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT  
 
Deer Culling– Moran stated the deer culling issue has been very controversial with lots of 
interested people.  He is trying to do his best to keep citizens informed.  When they are out there 
culling deer, an alert will go through Nixel to inform residents.  Culling will be done between 8:30 
and noon.  Moran advised he has prepared an activity log which he will be happy to bring to each 
meeting and give a report on.   
 
Casey’s – Moran advised we are at a standstill with Casey’s until such time as we locate the 
water and sewer main.  We should know this by the end of the week.   
 
Thank you – Moran thanked the Einsweiler’s and Lemfco Foundry for storing the old depot 
benches.  The benches had originally been stored in a rented storage facility.  Moran feels at 
some point the City needs to decide what they want to do with the benches.   
 
American Water – American Water will give a report at the next meeting.   
 
15C-0038 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Deer Culling – Mayor Renner made the following statement:  “I understand that culling the deer 
population is a very sensitive issue.  Beginning in 2013, we have attempted to openly study the 
issue and address what was determined to be a problem in our community.  As Mark said, we are 
beginning to undertake the process of culling in accordance with the council decision and the 
permit issued by the Department of Natural Resources.  Beginning in the near future, I would 
propose to review all aspects of the deer population issue in Galena, including:  An assessment 
of deer population to determine if the herd is of a healthy size or overpopulated, options for 
addressing the deer population issue, including the following:  Public education about deer 
damage abatement techniques, Deterring illegal feeding of deer and, if there is an overpopulation 
issue, non-lethal and lethal control techniques.  I would like to expand the Deer Population 
Control Committee to bring more interested citizens into the study process.  I am hopeful that by 
continuing to address the issue in a structured and civil manner we can move forward together as 
a strong community.”  
 
Thank you – Mayor Renner thanked the Public Works Department for a job well done with the 
snow.   
 
15C-0039 – MOTION FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Painter, to recess to Executive Session to discuss the 
following: 
 

 Pending, probable or imminent litigation, Section 2 (c) (11) 
 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Bernstein 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
 
The meeting recessed at 7:15 p.m. 

Page 13 of 73



Regular Board Meeting  26 January 2015 

 
The meeting reconvened at 7:37 p.m. 
 
15C-0040 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:  Painter moved, seconded by Lincoln to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Bernstein 
            
  The motion carried.  
      
The meeting adjourned at 7:38 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 

Page 14 of 73



Page 15 of 73



Page 16 of 73



Page 17 of 73



Page 18 of 73



Page 19 of 73



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    February 5, 2015 

RE:    Downtown Sidewalks 
 
In October, we contracted with MSA Professional Services to conduct a comprehensive inventory 
of the condition of the sidewalks in the downtown.  MSA has completed the inventory and 
presented the attached report of their findings.  Jake Huck from MSA will be present at the council 
meeting on February 9 to discuss the conclusions.  
 
Our staff have been working with MSA in recent weeks to review the study results and begin 
outlining issues and options for moving forward to improve the sidewalks.  We prepared the 
following Summary of the MSA Conclusions and Issues for Consideration to assist with focusing the 
discussion and decision‐making.   
 
Summary of MSA Conclusions: 
 

1. Much of the concrete used for the sidewalks is deteriorating prematurely and the 
deterioration appears to be accelerating.   

2. The cause of the deterioration has not been determined with confidence. 
3. 25% of the downtown sidewalk is in fair or poor condition and replacement is 

recommended. 
4. 75% of the downtown sidewalk is in good condition. 
5. Brick paving band behind the curb was not analyzed for deterioration or surface 

irregularities.    
 

Issues for Consideration: 
 

1. Concrete Finish:  Should we continue to use an exposed aggregate finish or perhaps a 
standard brushed/broomed finish with the concrete tinted slightly gray to give the 
appearance of age?  The same jointing pattern should be used for consistency of design.  If 
exposed aggregate is not used, standard concrete may appear very “white”.  Both MSA and 
our staff are concerned about using exposed aggregate given the problems with its use in 
the downtown.  If exposed aggregate is not selected for replacement, the Galena Code of 
Ordinances would have to be amended to allow the chosen finish to be used in the 

Page 20 of 73



2 
 

downtown district.  If concrete with a gray tint is selected, test panels are recommended to 
evaluate color options.  

 
2. Bricks:  Should the band of paving bricks behind the curb be retained or should a different 

finish be used?  Other options could include replacing the bricks with a band of brick 
colored concrete stamped with the same brick pattern or eliminating the band and running 
the gray concrete from the building to the back of the curb.  Consideration should be given 
to the appearance of mixing designs on the same street and within the downtown.  We 
have received complaints over the years about the unevenness of the brick surface.  
Pedestrians often avoid walking on the bricks which effectively shrinks the width of the 
sidewalks.  Rather than try to imitate historic bricks, our staff suggest consideration of 
removing the brick band and installing concrete from building to back of curb.   

 
3. Crosswalks:  Our staff suggest continuing with the replacement of deteriorated crosswalks 

with the brick colored road mix concrete.  The crosswalks that have been replaced with this 
specification in recent years appear to be durable.  Crosswalk replacement would be 
included in the sidewalk replacement phasing plan. 

 
4. Mix:  Consider a heavy duty concrete mix for the sidewalks as suggested by MSA.  A 

stronger mix may help delay deterioration from the heavy use of deicers in the downtown. 
 

5. Phasing:  In order to minimize disruption and fund the project without new debt, 
construction could be phased over several years.  The phasing plan should prioritize the 
sidewalks with the lowest condition ratings and the highest traffic areas.   MSA and our 
staff recommend replacing the entire block of sidewalk where the majority of the sidewalk 
has been rated as fair or poor.   All of the fair/poor sidewalk on Main Street would likely be 
included in the first two years of construction.   

 
6. Schedule:  When would the annual replacement work be completed?  Our staff believes 

that in order to minimize disruption to the downtown economy we should complete 
construction by May 30 of each year.  We suggest considering a program of sealing and 
patching in 2015, with construction beginning in April 2016.  This schedule would give us 
adequate time to study the outstanding issues and plan for an efficient construction 
program.    

 
7. Inspection and testing:  For quality control, our staff recommends including professional 

inspection and concrete testing as part of the sidewalk replacement plan.   
 

8. Cost:   The estimated cost of replacement is $10‐$15 per square foot plus $1,500 per ADA 
ramp.  With approximately 30,000 square feet in need of replacement (including brick 
band), the total project cost is estimated between $300,000 and $450,000.  Again, ideally 
construction and maintenance would be phased over multiple years to avoid new debt.  
Funding for the project would likely be a General Fund expense and could delay other work 
in the community.    

Page 21 of 73



3 
 

 
9. Maintenance Plan:  Our city crew would plan to continue to patch all defects in the spring 

and as needed throughout the remainder of the year.  A patching compound would be 
selected with consideration of the following criteria: color matches the existing concrete as 
closely as possible, product creates a good bond with the existing concrete, ease of 
preparation and application, and cost.  Black asphalt cold patch would not be used.  Our 
staff is in the process of ordering patching compounds for testing as soon as possible.  We 
are also researching the costs and benefits of sealing the good sidewalks to slow their 
deterioration.  

 
10. Decision making:  We would recommend all design issues be reviewed by the Historic 

Preservation Commission, with notice to the public, before final action by the city council.  
We would welcome input from downtown property owners and business owners.   

 
I look forward to your discussion and to developing the final plan to address this unfortunate issue. 

     
 

 

Page 22 of 73



MSA Professional Services Sidewalk Deterioration Study  January 16, 2015 

1 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIDEWALK DETERIORATION STUDY 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 23 of 73



MSA Professional Services Sidewalk Deterioration Study  January 16, 2015 

2 | P a g e  

 

1.0 Introduction 
 

MSA was contracted to assist City Staff by evaluating the condition of the existing sidewalk in the 

downtown area and quantifying the level of deficiency to allow the City of Galena to more accurately 

prioritize maintenance, rehabilitation and in some cases, replacement of the walk.  The segments of 

sidewalk analyzed include Main St from US 20 to Meeker St, Water St from Main St to Franklin St, and 

Commerce St from Warren St to Franklin St.  Short segments of Warren St, Green St, Washington St, Hill 

St, Perry St, Diagonal St, and Franklin St, within the downtown district were also analyzed.  

The sidewalk within the study area was constructed in five phases over five construction seasons 

between 2001 and 2005.   Construction plans were developed by two different engineering firms and 

actual installation was completed by a long list of Prime Contractors and their subcontractors.  These 

phases are identified in the attached exhibit titled “Sidewalk Construction Phases.”  For reasons that are 

not fully understood at this time, forensic investigation was not in the scope of this evaluation, the 

concrete sidewalk has deteriorated prematurely and this deterioration appears to be accelerating, even 

with routine maintenance by City Staff.  The City of Galena welcomes many thousands of residents and 

visitors to the downtown district each year and the cosmetic and potential hazards posed to pedestrians 

traversing the sidewalk for shopping, tourism, and entertainment requires action by the City.  

From discussions with City Staff, deterioration of the sidewalks typically first becomes visible on the 

surface with flaking and erosion at the joints and is more severe in magnitude on the bottom of the 

individual panels.  Other deficiencies noted include longitudinal and lateral cracking, spalling, vertical 

and horizontal separation of joints and settling and/or heaving type failures.  

It should be emphasized that this study focuses only on the observed 

condition of the concrete sidewalk panels at the surface.  Condition 

of the reclaimed brick paver bands was documented but was not 

included in the analysis detailed in the attached exhibits.  Also it is 

very important to note that this study did not evaluate pedestrian 

routes for accessibility and Americans with Disability Act (ADA) 

compliance. Potential noncompliance with the federal guidelines was 

observed at many driveway approaches and curb ramp locations.  

Most commonly, there appears to be segments of sidewalk 

exceeding the maximum cross-slope of 2% and an obvious lack of 

detectable warning panels at curb ramps.  

The goal of this report is to identify the largest problem areas to allow the City Council to prioritize as 

the City Staff attempts to develop a reasonable maintenance, rehabilitation and replacement schedule. 

  

Vertical 

Transition 

Page 24 of 73



MSA Professional Services Sidewalk Deterioration Study  January 16, 2015 

3 | P a g e  

 

2.0 Data Collection 
 

Sidewalk condition data was collected by MSA personnel 

between October 28 and November 6, 2014. First, the 

condition of each sidewalk panel was rated as either 

“good,” “fair,” or “poor.” A panel was deemed in “good” 

condition if no deficiencies were observed. A panel in 

“fair” condition displayed minor deficiencies such as slight 

cracking at joints, longitudinal cracking, or slight spalling, 

but relatively low safety concerns to pedestrians. A panel 

determined to be in “poor” condition exhibited cracking, 

previous repairs, and significant erosion at the joints or 

other forms of concrete deterioration that is a potential 

hazard to pedestrians.  

Along with the sidewalk condition, other useful information was recorded such as the length of the 

segment analyzed, the width of the sidewalk, and the location relative to each building. The sidewalk 

length and width was critical in estimating quantities of the square footage of sidewalk in “good,” “fair,” 

and “poor” condition. Note that the length and width of concrete panels in the walk areas varied from 3 

to 5 feet or greater.  

3.0 Data Analysis 
 

3.1 Tabulation 

For each respective length of sidewalk, the number of panels and condition was counted and tabulated. 

Based on an average length and width of each panel along the respective segment, the square footage 

of sidewalk in each condition class was determined. An example of this process is shown below. 

Table 1: Tabulation of Panels and Area in Each Condition 

Condition  Number of Panels Area (sf) 

   Good 13 156 

   Fair 3 36 

 

Width (FT) 4 

Poor 1 12 

 

Panel Length (FT) 3 

 

In this example, 13 panels were found in good condition, 3 in fair condition, and 1 in poor condition. 

Based on the average panel length and width, the area in square feet was determined. 

�������		��
������:								�������� = 13	������ ∗ (4	�� ∗ 3	��)����� = 156	�� 

Page 25 of 73



MSA Professional Services Sidewalk Deterioration Study  January 16, 2015 

4 | P a g e  

 

After the data was tabulated and the square footage was calculated, data was then organized into block 

by block segments.  An example, using the data in Table 2, is shown for the segment of sidewalk on the 

west side of Main St from Water St to Warren St. 

Table 2: Tabulation of Sidewalk on West Side of Main St between Water St and Warren St. 

Condition  Number of Panels Area (sf) % Total 

Good 198.33 1881.3 68.5 

Fair 63 606.1 22.1 

Poor 26.5 257.7 9.4 

Total 287.83 2745.1 100.0 

 

Based on the area data, the percent of panels in each condition was calculated as shown by the 

following example calculation. 

�������		��
������:								%	"�������� = #$%&.(()&*.&(+ ∗ 100% = 68.9%  

 

3.2 Point System 

A point system was then used to calculate the score of each section of sidewalk. 1.5 points were given 

for each percent of sidewalk in good condition, 0 points for each percent of sidewalk in fair condition, 

and negative 2 points for each percent of sidewalk in poor condition. In the case of the sidewalk on the 

west side of Main St between Water St and Warren St, the score totaled to 84 points as shown by the 

example calculation. 

 

Example Calculation:  =
��� = 68.5% ∗ 1 .5
>�?@A

%
+ 22.1% ∗ 0

>�?@A

%
+ 9.4% ∗ �−2�

>�?@A

%
= 84 ����� 

 

Each section of sidewalk was then given a grade based on the point value calculated. The threshold for 

grading scale was established after discussion with City Staff and is shown in Table 3. Given this grading 

scale, the sidewalk on the west side of Main St between Water St and Warren St received a grade of 

“good.” 

 

Table 3 Grading Scale 

Points Grade Color on Map 

90 and Above Excellent 

 
89 – 80  Good 

 
79 – 70  Fair 

 
69 – 60 Poor 

 
59 and Below Very Poor 

 

 

Page 26 of 73



MSA Professional Services Sidewalk Deterioration Study  January 16, 2015 

5 | P a g e  

 

This process was repeated for each section of sidewalk, 77 in total. Note that the sidewalk on the south 

side of Water St between Main St and Franklin St was broken up into smaller sections, rather than 

putting that long stretch of sidewalk into one category. Also, blocks of sidewalk were split when there 

was a clearly defined change in sidewalk condition. Of the 77 segments, 12 were in excellent condition, 

31 were in good condition, 16 were in fair condition, 8 were in poor condition, and 10 were in very poor 

condition.  

4.0 Conditions Exhibit  
 

After each segment of sidewalk was categorized, the attached exhibit labeled “Existing Sidewalk 

Conditions” was created with the colors in coordinating to Table 3. The existing conditions exhibit can be 

found in the Appendix. The existing conditions exhibit provides a visual representation as to potential 

priority areas to focus rehabilitation or replacement effort. The most noticeable problem area is found 

along Commerce St between Warren St and Franklin St. Of the 17 different segments of sidewalk in that 

area, 2 were graded “very poor,” 3 were graded “poor,” 6 were in “fair” condition and just 6 segments 

were found to be in good condition.  

5.0 Deficiency Exhibit 
 

A second exhibit was created from the collected data, titled “Sidewalk Concrete Deficiencies,” to 

attempt to quantify highlight segments of sidewalk that show deficiency but due to highly variable 

conditions in the field, the grade calculated in the Conditions exhibit may not accurately identify those 

locations. The difference between the deficiency exhibit and the conditions exhibit is that all types of 

concrete deficiencies were given the same weight regardless of the severity or potential safety hazard. 

For example, many panels of sidewalk have slight erosion beginning at the joints and corners. Although 

this type of deficiency can be easily patched to minimize trip hazards, the fix is only temporary and that 

portion of sidewalk will likely require replacement in the near future. The deficiency exhibit therefore 

better represents the sidewalk that has begun to deteriorate as oppose to the conditions exhibit, which 

places a higher emphasis on sidewalk that have safety hazards.  

6.0 Quantities  
 

From notes taken during the inspection of the sidewalk estimated quantities were calculated and are 

shown in Table 4. These quantities are not based on survey or individual panel measurements so they 

should be used as an approximation only.  Approximately 10% of the overall sidewalk was rated as poor 

and 14% is in fair condition. It is our recommendation that the City plan for potential replacement of any 

sidewalk rated fair or poor as quickly as the City’s budget allows.  Deterioration can be expected to 

Page 27 of 73



MSA Professional Services Sidewalk Deterioration Study  January 16, 2015 

6 | P a g e  

 

expand at an accelerated rate in these areas.  A breakdown of quantities can be found in the attached 

exhibit titled “Sidewalk Quantities” in the report Appendix. 

Table 4: Concrete Sidewalk Quantities  

Condition Area (sf) % Total 

Good  65,686 75.6 

Fair  12,576 14.5 

Poor 8,581 9.9 

Total  86,843 100 

 

Table 5: Paver Band Quantities  

Brick Pavers Area (sf) 

Total 24,466 

7.0 Costs 
 

For budgetary purposes, removal and replacement of the current concrete sidewalk with standard, non-

exposed aggregate, non-colored concrete is estimated to be in the range of $10/SF.  Colored and 

impressed concrete, if utilized to replace the salvaged pavers, would cost an estimated $15/SF.  Curb 

ramps, including curb and gutter and required detectable warning panels can conservatively be 

estimated to cost $1,500/EA.  Additional cost may be incurred if stone subbase material is determined 

to not be present in sufficient depth or has been compromised in some manner.  Also the condition of 

pedestrian crosswalks should be evaluated and addressed during any sidewalk replacement project. 

For segments of sidewalk in the downtown that are not able to be replaced in the short term, 

immediate maintenance is recommended to address deficiencies that may create tripping hazards to 

pedestrians.   

After discussion with a Concrete Paving Association 

representative, we would recommend the City 

investigate the use of various products available from 

local suppliers such as Tamspatch II, T430 and Duo Patch 

to name a few.  The suppliers of these products are 

interested in reviewing the situation in an attempt to find 

a semi-permanent solution until full replacement of the 

sidewalks can be budgeted.  All these materials are 

temporary in nature but their performance, if installed as 

recommended by the manufacturer, should greatly 

exceed that of ACC cold-patch or the grout patching currently used by City Staff.   

Page 28 of 73



MSA Professional Services Sidewalk Deterioration Study  January 16, 2015 

7 | P a g e  

 

8.0 Recommendations 
 

Situations like the one the City of Galena finds itself in now are never pleasant, always costly and often 

contentious but there also exists an opportunity to address shortcomings that have come to light with 

the current streetscape strategy and to improve the function and appearance of one of the most unique 

and historically significant downtown districts in the state of Illinois.  MSA recommends the City involve 

those stake holders who will be most affected by the Council’s ultimate decision to repair or replace the 

sidewalks and in what manner, early in the planning process.  The downtown streetscape plan and 

associated ordinances are recommended to be reviewed and possibly amended as necessary. 

The sheer volume of vehicle and pedestrian traffic that the downtown district handles annually are non-

typical.  Routine planning and design standards should be critically evaluated to verify they are 

applicable and will serve the community needs within the unique circumstances of Galena’s downtown.    

Several key factors to consider that have come to light thru discussion with MSA Staff and Concrete 

Industry professionals: 

• Existing concrete core testing and background research was performed by WHKS previously.  

Additional forensic testing may be beneficial to further investigate the causes of the premature 

concrete failure.  Forensic testing may include but should not be limited to testing for sulfates in 

the subgrade soils, concrete aggregate quality testing, cement type and additive evaluation and 

roadway and sidewalk de-icer chemical review and possible restrictions.  An alternative 

approach may be to develop a more rigorous construction specification and heavy duty mix 

design for future replacements and new construction, moving forward.  

• Evaluation of ADA compliance with the most up-to-date regulations is recommended to take 

place simultaneously with any replacement program to identify and address the deficiencies 

that exist.   

• Consideration of alternative pavement surfaces such as concrete pavers that may be more 

resistant to heavy de-icer use and very frequent freeze-thaw cycles.  

• It is our understanding from City Staff there is substantial stone subbase and a road subdrain tile 

under the pavement in the majority of the downtown areas.  The condition of the respective 

below grade base material should be verified during any replacement program and areas with 

insufficient stone subbase or poor drainage addressed at that time. 

• Evaluation of electrical, lighting, fiber, fire protection water service connections and other utility 

upgrades that would be advantageous to complete during any replacement effort. 

Moving forward to construction: 

• Material testing during any future construction is recommended to include particular attention 

to entrained air content with an effort to reach the 6-7% level throughout the pavement 

thickness.   

Page 29 of 73



MSA Professional Services Sidewalk Deterioration Study  January 16, 2015 

8 | P a g e  

 

• Strict field inspection and documentation is recommended to ensure adherence to City of 

Galena or Project specifications regarding concrete quality, placement and finishing. 

As previously stated, the City of Galena hosts thousands of shoppers, sightseers, visitors and residents to 

the downtown district each year.  Failures in the sidewalk in the heart of the community have a visual 

appearance that affects business owners and managers and potential hazards posed to pedestrians 

traversing the sidewalk for shopping, tourism, and entertainment requires action.  MSA has local and 

company-wide resources to assist in any way necessary, with the Council’s direction. We welcome the 

opportunity to assist City Staff and Galena’s community leaders effectively to address this challenge. 

  

 

Page 30 of 73



A1

SIDEWALK EXISTING CONDITIONS

00075014

GALENA, ILLINOIS

CITY OF GALENA

DOWNTOWN GALENA SIDEWALK STUDY

PLOT DATE:

NO. DATE
REVISION

BY

SHEET

FILE NO.

1/16/15,  P:\70s\75\00075014\CADD\Exhibits\00075014 Phases.dwg

. .
.

. .
.

.
.

.

.

.

.

MA

JH

.

00075014

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NO.:

PROJECT DATE:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

AS SHOWN

F.B. :

.

.
.

M

A

I

N

 

S

T

S

 
W

A

T

E

R

 
S

T

N

 
W

A

T
E

R

 
S

T

W

A

R

R

E

N

 

S

T

C

O

M

M

E

R

C

E

 

S

T

G

R

E

E

N

 

S

T

W

A

S

H

I
N

G

T

O

N

 
S

T

 MAIN ST

H
I
L
L
 
S

T

P
E

R
R

Y
 
S

T

D

I

A

G

O

N

A

L

 

S

T

B
E

N
C

H
 S

T

F

R

A

N

K

L

I
N

 
S

T

M

E

E

K

E

R

 

S

T

PHASE 3

PHASE 4

PHASE 5

PHASE 6

PHASE 7

SUB-CONTRACTOR

JACKSON CONCRETE/

LOUIE'S TRENCHING

HARN CONSTRUCTION

M&M CONCRETE

M&M CONCRETE

LOUIE'S TRENCHING

CONSTRUCTION YEAR

2001

2002

2002

2003

2005

PHASE LEGEND

CITY OF GALENA: SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION PHASES

Page 31 of 73



A1

SIDEWALK EXISTING CONDITIONS

00075014

GALENA, ILLINOIS

CITY OF GALENA

DOWNTOWN GALENA SIDEWALK STUDY

PLOT DATE:

NO. DATE
REVISION

BY

SHEET

FILE NO.

1/16/15,  P:\70s\75\00075014\CADD\Exhibits\00075014 Existing Conditions Exhibit - new point system.dwg

. .
.

. .
.

.
.

.

.

.

.

MA

JH

.

00075014

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NO.:

PROJECT DATE:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

AS SHOWN

F.B. :
.

.

.

M

A

I

N

 

S

T

S

 
W

A

T

E

R

 
S

T

N

 
W

A

T
E

R

 
S

T

W

A

R

R

E

N

 

S

T

C

O

M

M

E

R

C

E

 

S

T

G

R

E

E

N

 

S

T

W

A

S

H

I
N

G

T

O

N

 
S

T

 MAIN ST

H
I
L
L
 
S

T

P
E

R
R

Y
 
S

T

D

I

A

G

O

N

A

L

 

S

T

B
E

N
C

H
 S

T

F

R

A

N

K

L

I
N

 
S

T

M

E

E

K

E

R

 

S

T

CONDITIONS LEGEND

EXCELLENT

GOOD

FAIR

POOR

VERY POOR

NO SIDEWALK

CITY OF GALENA: EXISTING SIDEWALK CONDITIONS

FULL WIDTH BRICK

PRIVATE SIDEWALK

Page 32 of 73



A1

SIDEWALK CONCRETE DEFICIENCIES

00075014

GALENA, ILLINOIS

CITY OF GALENA

DOWNTOWN GALENA SIDEWALK STUDY

PLOT DATE:

NO. DATE
REVISION

BY

SHEET

FILE NO.

1/16/15,  P:\70s\75\00075014\CADD\Exhibits\00075014 Deficiency Exhibit.dwg

. .

.

. .

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

MA

JH

.

00075014

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NO.:

PROJECT DATE:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

AS SHOWN

F.B. :
.

.

.

M

A

I

N

 

S

T

S

 
W

A

T

E

R

 
S

T

N

 
W

A

T
E

R

 
S

T

W

A

R

R

E

N

 

S

T

C

O

M

M

E

R

C

E

 

S

T

G

R

E

E

N

 

S

T

W

A

S

H

I
N

G

T

O

N

 
S

T

 MAIN ST

H
I
L
L
 
S

T

P
E

R
R

Y
 
S

T

D

I

A

G

O

N

A

L

 

S

T

B
E

N
C

H
 S

T

F

R

A

N

K

L

I
N

 
S

T

M

E

E

K

E

R

 

S

T

DEFICIENCIES LEGEND

0% - 19.9%

20% - 39.9%

GREATER THAN 40%

CITY OF GALENA: SIDEWALK CONCRETE DEFICIENCIES

FULL WIDTH BRICK

NO SIDEWALK

PRIVATE SIDEWALK

Page 33 of 73



A1

SIDEWALK QUANTITIES

00075014

GALENA, ILLINOIS

CITY OF GALENA

DOWNTOWN GALENA SIDEWALK STUDY

PLOT DATE:

NO. DATE
REVISION

BY

SHEET

FILE NO.

1/16/15,  P:\70s\75\00075014\CADD\Exhibits\00075014 Quantities by Block.dwg

. .
.

. .
.

.
.

.

.

.

.

MA

JH

1/15/15

00075014

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NO.:

PROJECT DATE:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

AS SHOWN

F.B. :

.

.
.

M

A

I

N

 

S

T

S

 
W

A

T

E

R

 
S

T

N

 
W

A

T
E

R

 
S

T

W

A

R

R

E

N

 

S

T

C

O

M

M

E

R

C

E

 

S

T

G

R

E

E

N

 

S

T

W

A

S

H

I
N

G

T

O

N

 
S

T

 MAIN ST

H
I
L
L
 
S

T

P
E

R
R

Y
 
S

T

D

I

A

G

O

N

A

L

 

S

T

B

E

N

C

H

 
S

T

F

R

A

N

K

L

I
N

 
S

T

M

E

E

K

E

R

 

S

T

CITY OF GALENA: SIDEWALK QUANTITIES

Page 34 of 73



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    February 2, 2015 

RE:    Council Rules of Procedure 
 
 
At the January 26 council meeting, you tabled action on possible changes to the City Council 
Rules of Procedure pertaining to deferment/postponement.  In the motion to table you also 
suggested adding a glossary of terms to the rules.  Following the meeting, I made several 
changes to the rules described as follows: 

 
1. Page 7, Section 8.  Removed term “defer” and replaced with “postpone”.  A motion and 

a second to postpone an item of new business to the next regular meeting still takes 
precedence over any other motions for an item of new business.   

 
2. Page 7, Section 8.  Added a paragraph describing the motion to “postpone to a definite 

time or day”.   
 

3. Page 7, Section 8.  Added a paragraph describing the motion to “postpone indefinitely”.  
 

4. Page 10, Section 20.  Removed reference to “lay on the table”.  To lay on the table may 
be accomplished by postponing to a definite time or day.   

 
5. Page 17, Section 30.  Added a glossary of terms. 

 
I am hopeful these changes will simplify the making of motions by removing the use of defer 
and table.  Under the proposed rules, “postpone” would be the only motion used to delay 
action on a motion or an agenda item.  Please feel free to contact me with any questions.   
 
  

 
  
 
  

  
 

 

Page 35 of 73



 

Most Recently Amended February 9, 2015 

 

City of Galena 

Illinois 
City Council Rules of Procedures 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted 

May 12, 1997 

Page 36 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  2

CITY OF GALENA 

CITY COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 1.  MEETINGS ........................................................................................................4 

SECTION 2.  PRESIDING OFFICER .........................................................................................4 

SECTION 3.  AGENDA ...........................................................................................................5 

SECTION 4.  QUORUM .........................................................................................................6 

SECTION 5.  ORDER OF BUSINESS .......................................................................................6 

SECTION 6.  DUTIES .............................................................................................................6 

SECTION 7.  VISITORS ..........................................................................................................7 

SECTION 8.  PRESENTATION OF NEW BUSINESS AND POSTPONEMENT ..........................7 

SECTION 10.  CALL OF MEMBER TO ORDER .......................................................................8 

SECTION 11.  APPEALS FROM DECISIONS OF THE PRESIDING OFFICER ............................8 

SECTION 12.  QUESTION OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE ............................................................8 

SECTION 13.  VOTING ..........................................................................................................8 

SECTION 14.  SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS .......................................................................8 

SECTION 15.  SECONDING OF MOTIONS REQUIRED ..........................................................8 

SECTION 16.  WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS ........................................................................9 

SECTION 17.  DIVISION OF QUESTIONS ..............................................................................9 

SECTION 18.  RECORD OF MOTIONS ...................................................................................9 

SECTION 19.  VOTES ............................................................................................................9 

SECTION 20.  PRECEDENCE OF MOTIONS ...........................................................................9 

SECTION 21.  MOTION TO CLOSE DEBATE ........................................................................11 

Page 37 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  3

SECTION 22.  RECONSIDERATION .....................................................................................12 

SECTION 23.  STANDING COMMITTEES ............................................................................12 

SECTION 24.  THE MINUTES OF MEETINGS ......................................................................12 

SECTION 25.  ORDINANCES ...............................................................................................13 

SECTION 26.  ADOPTION OF ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER ...............................................14 

SECTION 27.  TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF RULES; AMENDMENT TO RULES ...............14 

SECTION 28.  CENSURE OF MEMBERS; EXPULSION OF MEMBERS ..................................14 

SECTION 29.  ELECTRONIC ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS ..................................................14 

SECTION 30.  GLOSSARY OF TERMS ............................................................................. 17 

 

Page 38 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  4

City of Galena 
City Council Rules of Procedure 

 
The following rules of order and procedure shall govern the deliberations and meetings of 
the City Council.   Rules of order and procedure adopted by committees of the Council shall 
not be inconsistent with the rules set forth herein. 
 

All words used hereafter that import the masculine gender shall extend and be applied to 
females as well. 

Section 1.  Meetings 

The regular meetings of the Council shall be held the second and forth Monday in each 
month of the year at the hour of 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall, unless another site shall be 
specified. 
 

Any regular meeting falling on a legal holiday shall be held on the next following secular 
day at the same hour and place. 
 

Special meetings may be called by the mayor or by any three members of the Council by 
written request or notice being filed with the clerk at least 54 hours prior to the time 
specified for such meeting.  At least 48 hours’ written notice of such special meeting shall 
be given by the clerk, which notice shall specify the time and purpose of such meeting and 
shall be delivered to each member of the Council personally if he can be found, and if he 
cannot be found, a copy of such notice shall be left at the home of such council member in 
the presence of an adult member of the Council member’s family or in the absence of such 
person shall be left at the residence. All meetings of the Council, including special and 
adjourned meetings, except closed sessions thereof, shall be open to the public, as is 
required by statute. 
 

In the case of an emergency, a meeting may be called upon such notice as is practicable.  
The meeting may be called by the mayor or by any three councilpersons.  The convening 
authority shall notify all other members of the Council, the clerk, and members of the 
media who are entitled to such notice. 

Section 2.  Presiding Officer   

The mayor shall preside at all meetings of the Council, but he shall have a vote only: 

1. When the state statutes or the municipal ordinances require more than a                      
majority vote of the corporate authorities; 

2.  In the event of a tie; 
3.  When one half of the aldermen elected have voted in favor of an ordinance, 

resolution, or motion, even though there is no tie vote. 

Page 39 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  5

 
During the absence or disability of the mayor, the Council shall elect one of its number 
president pro tem of the Council, and he shall act as presiding officer of the Council.  When 
the absence or disability of the mayor is to be of a very short duration and no individual is 
required to be granted the powers of the mayor, the Council shall elect one of its members 
temporary chairmen.  The mayor pro tem or the temporary chairman, when acting as 
presiding officer, shall vote on all questions on which the vote is taken by “yeas” and 
“nays,” his name being called last.  The mayor pro tem shall have all of the powers and 
duties of the mayor; the temporary chairman shall have only such powers and duties as 
accrue to a presiding officer. 
 

Each meeting of the Council shall convene at the time appointed for such meeting, as 
provided by ordinance.  The clerk, or in his absence, a member of the Council or a 
recording secretary shall thereupon immediately call the roll of members.  If no quorum is 
present, the Council shall not thereby stand adjourned, but the members present shall be 
competent, by majority vote, to adjourn or recess the council to another time or date prior 
to the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

Section 3.  Agenda 

A.  Agenda.  The items to be considered at the Council meeting shall be those items 
appearing on the published agenda.  The agenda will be prepared by the City 
Administrator and anyone desiring to be listed on the agenda should contact the City 
Administrator.  Proposed agenda items must be submitted during regular business 
hours and not later than the Friday following the previous Council meeting.  The City 
Administrator shall have the discretion to determine if a proposed agenda item will be 
placed on the agenda.  Items that do not require Council approval and that can be 
addressed by City staff shall not be placed on the agenda.  An opportunity will be 
provided at each meeting under Public Comments for members of the public to raise 
questions and make comments on matters of public policy. 

 
B. Consent Agenda.  Each agenda may contain one or more groupings of items referred to 

as a “consent agenda”.  These items will be the same or similar to items previously 
approved by the City Council and which in the judgment of the City Administrator 
appear to be routine and non‐controversial.  Those items on the consent agenda that 
are voted on in one motion will be recorded individually by the clerk in the Council 
minutes.  The Mayor will give the City Council members and the public an opportunity 
to request the removal of items from the consent agenda.  The public may raise a 
request to remove an item from the Consent Agenda during the Public Comments 
section of the agenda at the beginning of the meeting.  A request from the public to 
remove an item from the Consent Agenda must be supported by a member of the City 
Council in order to be so removed from the Consent Agenda.  Once removed from the 
Consent Agenda, the item(s) will be treated as a separate matter immediately after 
approval of the consent agenda items. 

Page 40 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  6

Section 4.  Quorum  

A quorum for the transaction of business shall consist of a majority of all the Council. 

Section 5.  Order of Business 

   The order of business shall be as follows: 

1.  Call to order by presiding officer 
2.  Roll call 
3.  Establishment of quorum 
4.   Pledge of Allegiance  
5.  Reports of standing committees (not to exceed 3 minutes each)   
6.  Public comments (not to exceed 15 minutes as an item nor more than 3 minutes 

per speaker) 
7.  Consent Agenda 
8.   Old business 
9.  New business 
10. Adjournment 

 

Section 6.  Duties 

A. Duties of the Presiding Officer.  The presiding officer shall preserve order and decorum 
and may speak to points of order in preference to other members and shall decide all 
questions of order subject to appeal.  The presiding officer may speak to matters being 
considered by the Council without relinquishing the chair.  If the presiding officer 
refuses to allow a councilperson to exercise his right to appeal a decision of the 
presiding officer, the council may consider and pass on the matter in spite of the 
presiding officer’s failure to grant the right to an appeal. 
 
In case of any disturbances or disorderly conduct, the presiding officer shall have the 
power to require the chamber to be cleared. 

 

B. Duties of Members.  While the presiding officer is putting the question, no member   
may leave the Council chamber. 

 
     Every member, prior to speaking, making a motion, or seconding the same, shall address 

himself to the presiding officer and say “Mr. Mayor” and shall not proceed with his 
remarks until recognized and named by the chair.  He shall confine himself to the 
question under debate, avoiding personalities and refraining from impugning the 
motives of any other member’s argument or vote. 

 

When two or more members address the Chair at the same time, the presiding officer 
shall name the member who is first to speak.  The Council may, by two‐thirds vote, 

Page 41 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  7

expel a councilperson for disorderly conduct.  An alderman may not be expelled a 
second time for an offense upon which a prior expulsion was based. 

Section 7.  Visitors   

Except during the time allotted in the Agenda for Public Comment, no person other than a 
member of the council shall address the Council, except with the consent of at least two of 
the aldermen present.  If one alderman wishes to allow a visitor to speak outside the Public 
Comments Agenda item, the Mayor shall ask whether there is at least one more alderman 
who supports allowing the visitor to speak.  If at least one other alderman supports 
allowing the visitor to speak, the Mayor shall authorized the visitor to come before the 
Council to speak.  The Council by a majority vote may limit the time available for such 
comments to the Council. 
 

Requests for services offered during the regular business hours of City Hall, such as the 
issuance of permits or Freedom of Information Act requests shall be considered 
inappropriate for discussion and action during the Council meeting.  Under no 
circumstances shall such requests be accepted during the meeting. 

Section 8.  Presentation of New Business and Postponement 

Upon the request of any two councilpersons present, any report of a committee of the 
council, new business item, or motion on a new business item shall be postponed (for final 
action thereon) to the next regular meeting of the Council.  The motion is not debatable.  
The motion to postpone a report of a committee or new business item to the next regular 
meeting has precedence over any other motion to postpone.   
 

A motion to postpone to a definite time or day allows the City Council to postpone 
consideration of an agenda item or motion to a definite time, until after some other item 
of business has been dealt with, or to another.  The motion to postpone to a definite time 
is appropriate when more information is needed or the deliberations are likely to be 
lengthy.  A motion to postpone to a definite time or day is debatable and requires a 
majority for approval.  
 

A motion to postpone indefinitely prevents action on the agenda item or main motion for 
the duration of the current meeting.  An item that has been postponed indefinitely may be 
returned to a future agenda by any councilperson when requested in advance of the 
publication of the agenda.  A motion to postpone indefinitely is debatable and requires a 
majority for approval. 

Section 9.  Debate 
Any alderman, once recognized by the Presiding Officer, may speak on any issue before the 
Council.  Aldermen may speak more than once on the same question as long as time is 
granted to all aldermen desiring to speak to have had an opportunity to do so. The 

Page 42 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  8

proponent of the matter under consideration or the chairman of the committee whose 
report is under consideration, as the case may be, shall have the right to open and close 
debate, should he so desire.  No alderman shall speak longer than five minutes at any one 
time. 
 

While a member is speaking, no member shall hold any private discussion or pass between 
the speaker and the presiding officer. 

Section 10.  Call of Member to Order 

A member, when called to order by the Presiding Officer, shall thereupon discontinue 
speaking and take his seat, and the order of ruling by the Presiding Officer shall be binding 
and conclusive, subject only to the right of appeal. 

Section 11.  Appeals from Decisions of the Presiding Officer 

Any alderman may appeal to the Council from a ruling of the Presiding Officer and, if the 
appeal is seconded, the alderman making the appeal may briefly state his reason for the 
same, and the Presiding Officer may briefly explain his ruling; but there shall be no debate 
on the appeal, and no other member shall participate in the discussion.  The Presiding 
Officer shall then put the question, “Shall the decision of the Presiding Officer be 
sustained?”  If a majority of the aldermen present vote “No,” the decision of the Presiding 
Officer shall be overruled; otherwise, it shall be sustained. 

Section 12.  Question of Personal Privilege 

The right of an alderman to address the Council on a question of personal privilege shall be 
limited to cases in which his integrity, character, or motives are assailed, questioned, or 
impugned. 

Section 13.  Voting 

Every alderman who shall be present when a question is stated from the Presiding Officer 
shall vote thereon or abstain at the time that his name is first called.  Any member required 
to abstain on a matter due to conflict of interest shall so declare. 

Section 14.  Special Order of Business 

Any matter before the Council may be set down as a special order of business at a time 
certain if two‐thirds of the councilpersons present vote in the affirmative, but not 
otherwise. 

Section 15.  Seconding of Motions Required 

No motion shall be put or debated in the Council unless it is seconded, provided, however, 
that neither the maker nor seconder of a motion shall be required to vote in favor of that 

Page 43 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  9

motion.  However, the maker shall not be allowed to speak against his motion.  When a 
motion is seconded, it shall be stated by the Presiding Officer before debate, and every 
motion in the Council, except motions of procedure, shall be reduced to writing, if required 
by a member, and the member who proposed the motion shall be entitled to the floor.  No 
resolution, ordinance, or minutes need be read prior to consideration, but such items may 
be read in response to a motion passed seeking such reading. 

Section 16.  Withdrawal of Motions 

If the maker of the motion desires to withdraw the motion, he may do so.  The seconder of 
the motion may renew the motion as its maker and seek a new seconder.  If the seconder 
of a motion wishes to withdraw his second, he may do so.  The maker of the motion may 
seek an additional seconder before the motion is ruled out of order for lack of a second.  
Neither the maker nor seconder of a motion may withdraw the motion, except with the 
consent of a majority of the Council, once discussion on the motion has ceased. 

Section 17.  Division of Questions 

If any question under consideration contains several distinct propositions, the Council by a 
majority vote of the aldermen present may divide such question. 

Section 18.  Record of Motions 

In all cases in which a resolution or motion is entered in the minutes, the name of the 
member moving and seconding the same shall be entered. 

Section 19.  Votes 

The “yeas” and “nays” on any question shall be taken and entered in the minutes.  When 
the clerk has commenced to call the roll of the Council for the taking of a vote by “yeas” 
and “nays”, all debate on the question before the Council shall be deemed concluded. 
 

A “present” or “pass” vote shall be considered an abstention.  An abstention shall be 
considered as a concurrence with the majority present and voting on the issue for which an 
abstention is taken, but shall not be considered an affirmative vote on such issue.  In no 
event, however, shall any ordinance, resolution or motion requiring a super‐majority vote 
be adopted without the affirmative votes of such super‐majority of the councilpersons 
then holding office, including the mayor. 

Section 20.  Precedence of Motions 

A.  Precedence of Motions.  The following chart sets out commonly used motions in the 
order of their precedence as determined by ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER.  The Main or 
Principal Motion is at the bottom in rank.  The other motions may be made while the 
Main Motion is pending and must be dealt with before the Main Motion.  They are 
arranged according to rank, the highest at the top of the list.  Incidental motions, 

Page 44 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  10

however, have no rank among them yet take precedence over subsidiary motions.  
When any one motion is immediately pending, the motions above it on the list are in 
order, and those below are out of order. 

 

1.  Privileged Motions. 
 
       Undebatable:  Fix Time to Adjourn 
        Adjourn 
        Take Recess 
        Question of Privilege 
 
2.  Incidental Motions. 
 
       Undebatable:  Division of Assembly 
        Division of a Question 
        Filling Blanks 
        Objection 
        Parliamentary Inquiry 
        Point of Information 
        Point of Order 
        Suspend the Rules [requires a two‐thirds vote] 
        Withdraw a Motion 
 
      Debatable:    Appeal 
 
3.  Subsidiary Motions. 
 
       Undebatable:  The Previous Question (Close Debate) [requires a two‐ 
                        thirds vote] 
        Limit or Extend Debate 

        Debatable:   Postpone to a Definite Time 
        Refer to a Committee 
        Amend the Amendment 
        Amendment 
        Postpone Indefinitely 
        Main or Principal Motion 
 
4.  Miscellaneous Motions.  After action has been taken on Main or Principal Motion:  
 
       Rescind    (debatable)  [requires two‐thirds vote without notice,  
                   requires majority vote with notice]    
       Reconsider    (debatable) 
       Ratify    (debatable) 

Page 45 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  11

 
5.  Motion to Refer.  A motion to refer to a standing committee shall take              

precedence over a similar motion to refer to a special committee. 
 
6.  Motion to Amend.  A motion to amend an amendment shall be in order, but          

one to amend an amendment to an amendment shall not be entertained. 
 

An amendment modifying the intention of a motion shall be in order, but an 
amendment relating to a different subject shall not be in order. 
 
On an amendment to “Strike out and insert” the paragraph to be amended shall     
first be read as it stands, then the words proposed to be stricken out, then those   
to be inserted, and finally, the paragraph as it will stand if so amended shall be         
read. 
 
An amendment to the main question or other pending question may be referred           
to a committee, and neither the main question nor such other pending question       
shall be affected thereby.   

 
7.  Filling of Blanks.  When a blank is to be filled and different sums or times   

proposed, the question shall be taken first on the least sum or the longest time. 
 
8.  Motion to Substitute.  A substitute for any original proposition under debate or        

for any pending amendment to such proposition may be entertained and, if 
accepted by the council by vote, shall entirely supersede such original proposition 
or amendment, as the case may be. 

 

Section 21.  Motion to Close Debate 

A Motion to Close Debate may be made by any member at any time during the debate on a 
matter before the Council.  The motion requires a second.  When such a motion is made, 
the movant must state whether the motion applies to the immediate pending matter 
before the Council, for example, an amendment to the original motion previously made, or 
all pending matters, for example, a pending amendment and the original motion whether 
or not amended.  Once the motion is clearly understood and seconded, the motion is not 
debatable and a vote shall immediately occur. 
 

The motion requires a two‐thirds vote of alderman present, excluding the mayor, is 
required to bring debate to a close.  If two‐thirds or more of the alderman present vote to 
close debate, all debate ceases and the Council shall immediately proceed to vote on the 
pending matter(s).  IF the motion does not receive the support of at least two‐thirds of the 
alderman present, debate continues. 
 

Page 46 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  12

If the motion to close debate is adopted to cover more than the immediate pending 
motion, they are disposed of in reverse order one by one.  For example, the first vote is on 
the amendment, then, if the amendment is approved, a vote is held on the original motion, 
as amended. 

Section 22.  Reconsideration 

A vote may be reconsidered at any time during the same meeting or at the first regular 
meeting held thereafter.  A motion for reconsideration, once having been made and 
decided in the negative, shall not be renewed, nor shall a motion to reconsider be 
reconsidered.  No motion to reconsider the approval or denial of the recommendation of 
an advisory body required to hold public hearings shall be entertained except at the same 
meeting at which the original action was taken or after the matter has been referred to the 
advisory body for a further hearing and recommendation.  When a motion to reconsider 
such a motion is made at the same meeting as the passage of the original motion, it may be 
postponed to a later date certain. 
 

A motion to reconsider must be made by a member who voted on the prevailing side of the 
question to be reconsidered, unless otherwise provided by law, provided, however, that 
when a motion has received a majority vote in the affirmative but is declared lost solely on 
the ground that a greater number of affirmative votes are required by a statute for the 
passage or adoption of such motion, then in such case a motion to reconsider may be 
made only by those who voted in the affirmative on such question.  A motion to reconsider 
must be seconded and approved by a majority vote. 

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a motion to reconsider may be anytime if new information 
exists about the subject of the original question that could affect the outcome of the 
original vote.  In such a case where new information exists, a motion for reconsideration 
may be made only by a member who voted on the prevailing side of the original question 
and must be seconded by another member who voted on the prevailing side of the original 
question.  A motion for reconsideration on the basis of new information does not require a 
vote. (Amended August 22, 2011) 

Section 23.  Standing Committees 

Any report of a committee shall be deferred for final action thereon to the next regular 
meeting after the report is made, upon the request of any two members of the council. 

Section 24.  The Minutes of Meetings 

The clerk shall keep the minutes of the proceedings of the Council.  No less than three (3) 
days prior to the next meeting of the Council, the clerk shall supply to each member at his 
residence a typewritten copy of the minutes of the previous meeting of the Council.  The 
minutes shall be approved at the next meeting of the Council.  The clerk’s draft of the 
minutes may be amended to reflect correctly the view of the Council as to the events that 

Page 47 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  13

occurred.  The clerk shall bind the minutes of regular and special City Council meetings in 
the order in which they occurred in a fashion best suited to make such minutes available to 
the general public at City Hall. 

Section 25.  Ordinances 

A. Style of Ordinances.  The style of ordinances shall be “BE IT ORDAINED by the City 
Council of the City of Galena” as is provided by statute. 

 
B.  “Yea” or “Nay” Vote.  The yeas and nays shall be taken on the passage of all ordinances 

and on all propositions to create any liability against the city, or for the expenditures or 
appropriation of its money, and in all other cases at the request of any member of the 
Council; such vote shall be entered in the minutes, as is provided by statute. 

 
C. Approval or Veto.  All ordinances of whatever kind, and any resolution or motion 

creating any liability against a municipality, or providing for the expenditure or 
appropriation of its money, shall be deposited with the city clerk, and if the mayor 
approves thereof, he shall sign the same, and such as he shall not approve he shall 
return to the council with his objections thereto in writing at the next regular meeting 
occurring not fewer than five days after the passage thereof.  Such veto may extend to 
any one or more items or appropriations contained in any ordinance making an 
appropriation or to the entire ordinance; and in case the veto only extends to a part of 
such ordinance, the residue thereof shall take effect and be in force.  But in case the 
mayor shall fail to return any ordinance with his objections thereto by the time 
aforesaid, he shall be deemed to have approved such ordinance, and the same shall 
take effect accordingly. 
 
Upon return of any ordinance by the mayor, the vote by which the same was passed 
may be reconsidered by the council at its next regular meeting after the return of the 
veto; and if, after such reconsideration, two‐thirds of all the members elected to the 
council shall agree, by yeas and nays, to pass the same, it shall go into effect 
notwithstanding that the mayor may refuse to approve thereof. 

 
D. Record of Ordinances.  The clerk shall keep a record in an ordinance book for such 

purposes of all ordinances passed. 
 
E.  Publication.  All ordinances imposing any penalty for a violation thereof or making any 

appropriation shall be published as required by statute, either in a newspaper or in 
pamphlet form, in which case the ordinance in its pamphlet form shall be displayed for a 
reasonable period in a public place in the city hall.  All ordinances shall be published in 
the website of the City of Galena in a reasonable time after approval thereof. 

 
F.  Time of Taking Effect.  No ordinance that must be published to comply with the 

foregoing section shall go into effect until ten days after it is so published unless a 

Page 48 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  14

statement of the urgency of the ordinance is contained in it and it achieves passage by a 
two‐thirds vote of the members of the corporate authorities then holding office.  In all 
other cases, the ordinances shall go into effect upon the passage thereof, as provided by 
statute, even though the operation of the ordinance may not take effect until a later 
date. 

Section 26.  Adoption of ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER 

The rules of parliamentary practice contained in the latest published edition of ROBERT’S 
RULES OF ORDER shall govern the council in all cases to which they are applicable and in 
which they are not inconsistent with the special rules of this council or the statutes or laws 
of the state. 

Section 27.  Temporary Suspension of Rules; Amendment to Rules 

These rules may be temporarily suspended, repealed, altered, or amended by a two‐thirds 
vote of the corporate authorities then holding office. 

Section 28.  Censure of Members; Expulsion of Members 

Any member acting or appearing in a lewd or disgraceful manner, or who uses 
opprobrious, obscene, or insulting language to or about any member of the council, or who 
does not obey the orders of the presiding officer, shall be, on motion, censured by a 
majority vote of the council, including the mayor, and, in addition, may be fined not to 
exceed $25 for each such occurrence.  With the concurrence of two‐thirds of the 
councilpersons elected, including the mayor, the council may expel a councilperson, but 
not a second time for the same offense. 

Section 29.     Electronic Attendance at Meetings 

 
A. Rule Statement.  Any member may attend any open or closed meeting of the City 

Council via electronic means (such as by telephone, video, internet connection or 
other electronic tools) provided that such attendance is in compliance with this 
Section 28.  

 
B. Prerequisites. A member may attend a meeting by electronic means if the following 

conditions are met:  
 

(1)  A quorum is physically present throughout the meeting.  
 
(2)  A majority of the members present votes to approve the attendance of the 

member at the meeting by the requested electronic means. 
 
(3)   The member has notified the City Clerk at least twenty‐four (24) hours 

before the meeting, unless impractical, so that necessary communications 

Page 49 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  15

equipment can be arranged.  Inability to make the necessary technical 
arrangements will result in denial of a request for electronic attendance at 
the meeting by the member. 

 
(4)   The member has identified one of the following three reasons why he is 

unable to physically attend the meeting,  
 

(a) The member cannot attend because of personal illness or disability; 
or 
 
(b) The member cannot attend because of commitments to his 
employer or the business of the City of Galena do not allow attendance 
; or 
 
(c) The member cannot attend because of a family or other emergency. 

 
(5) The City Clerk, after receiving the electronic attendance request, shall 

inform the Mayor and other members of the City Council of the request for 
electronic attendance. 
 

C. Voting Procedures. After a roll call establishing that a quorum is physically present, 
the Mayor shall call for a motion that a member may be permitted to attend the 
meeting electronically after specifying the reason entitling the absent member to 
attend electronically.  The motion must be approved by a vote of a majority of the 
members present.  

  
D. Adequate Equipment Required.  The member participating electronically and other 

members must be able to communicate effectively, and members of the audience 
must be able to hear all communications at the meeting site. Before allowing 
electronic attendance at any meeting, the City shall provide equipment adequate to 
accomplish this objective at the meeting site. 

 
E. Minutes. Any member attending electronically shall be considered an off‐site 

attendee and counted as present electronically for that meeting. The meeting 
minutes shall also reflect and state specifically whether each member is physically 
present or present by electronic means.  

 
F. Rights of Remote Member. A member permitted to attend electronically will be 

able to express his or her comments during the meeting and participate in the same 
capacity as those members physically present, subject to all general meeting 
guidelines and procedures previously adopted and adhered to. The member 
attending electronically shall be heard, considered, and counted as to any vote 
taken. Accordingly, the name of any member attending electronically shall be called 
during any vote taken, and his or her vote counted and recorded by the City Clerk 

Page 50 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  16

and placed in the minutes for the corresponding meeting.  A member attending 
electronically may leave a meeting and return as in the case of any member, 
provided the member attending electronically shall announce his or her leaving and 
returning.   
 

 

Page 51 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  17

Section 30.    Glossary of Terms 
 

Abstain:  Refrain from voting. 
 
Ad hoc:  Formed for a temporary need (e.g., ad hoc committee). 
 
Adjourn:  End a meeting. 
 
Adjourned meeting:  A continuation of a meeting that was adjourned until a future time 
but is being held before the next regular session. 
 
Adopt:  To accept a motion and put it into effect. 
 
Agenda:  Specific list of items that will be considered/acted upon at a meeting.  Also 
called order of business. 
 
Amend:  Change or modify a motion. 
 
Amendment:  Proposed alteration or change to a motion. 
 
Appeal:  Question or disagree a decision of the chair. 
 
Aye:  A “yes” vote is sometimes referred to in discussion as an “aye” vote. 
 
Business:  Matters or items brought before the meeting for action. 
 
Call to order:  The opening of a meeting by the chair.  Also, instruction by the chair to a 
member who is disruptive in some way. 
 
Chair:  The presiding officer of the group or organization, usually the president but it 
may be any officer the president so designates. 
 
Convene:  Direction to the group to assemble (come to order to start a meeting). 
 
Debate:  Discussion of a motion prior to a vote. 
 
Dilatory:  Statement, motion, or action designed to obstruct or delay a meeting. 
 
Division of the assembly:  Retaking a vote by voice or show of hands when the count 
has been questioned. 
 

Page 52 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  18

Division of a motion:  Breaking up a complex motion into separate, independent 
motions to make it easier for members to understand and vote upon. Also known as 
division of a question. 
 
Executive session:  A meeting or a part of a meeting in which the proceedings are kept 
secret. 
 
Extend debate:  To officially increase the time members may debate an issue. 
 
Floor:  The right of a member to speak, to address a meeting and have the attention of 
the membership, as in “obtaining the floor.” 
 
Incidental motion:  A motion that arises from another motion. 
 
In order:  Parliamentary term for “correct.” 
 
Limit debate:  To officially restrict the amount of time members may debate an issue. 
 
Main motion:  Any motion that introduces business at a meeting. 
 
Majority:  More than half of the members who are present and voting on an issue.  
Members who do not vote are not counted when determining majority. 
 
Meeting:  Gathering or assembly of members to conduct business. 
 
Minutes:  Official record of what transpired at a meeting as recorded by the group 
secretary. 
 
Motion:  Proposal for action by a group at a meeting.  Also called a question. 
 
Move:  To make a motion. 
 
Notice of meeting:  Official announcement of a meeting and its particulars (date, time, 
place, purpose). 
 
Order of business:  Agenda. The order in which items on the agenda will be taken up by 
the membership. 
 
Out of order:  Statement or action that the chair declares is not appropriate or correct 
parliamentary practice. 
 
Parliamentary authority:  The rules of order that a group uses as its final (binding) 
authority on parliamentary procedure. 
 

Page 53 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  19

Parliamentary inquiry:  Question by a member to the chair about correctness of 
parliamentary procedure. 
 
Pending motion:  Any motion that is on the floor. 
 
Point of information:  Question to the chair asking for more information (but not on 
parliamentary procedure). 
Point of order:  A question or statement by a member about a potential violation of the 
rules, which must be raised at the time it occurs. 
 
Point of privilege:  Request for immediate attention to a matter that affects members, 
such as safety or comfort. 
 
Postpone indefinitely:  To put off a motion for an indefinite period. This motion then 
cannot be considered at the meeting in progress. 
 
Postpone to definite time:  Put off consideration of a motion to a specific time or date. 
 
Presiding officer:  Also known as the chair.    
 
Previous question:  Motion to close debate on a main motion and put it to a vote 
immediately. 
 
Privileged motion:  Motion that addresses a matter of importance that affects the 
comfort and safety of a member. It can interrupt any business on the floor. 
 
Pro tem:  Temporary. 
 
Quorum:  The official number of members required to conduct business.   
 
Rank of motion:  One motion has more importance than another.  For example, 
privileged motions always assume precedence over other motions because privileged 
motions concern conditions such as the comfort or safety of members (the meeting 
room is too warm, and so on). 
 
Recess:  A short break in a meeting. 
 
Reconsider:  A motion to review a previous decision and take another vote. 
 
Refer to committee:  Send a matter to a committee for study and recommendation of 
action. 
 
Rescind:  To nullify a vote on a matter at a previous meeting.  A two‐thirds majority is 
required. 

Page 54 of 73



 

City Council Rules of Procedure  20

 
Roll call vote:  Voice vote where members respond by saying “yes” or “no” when their 
names are called.  
 
Second:  To confirm that another member wants a motion considered (debated).  A 
member states, “I second the motion” or “Second.” 
 
Special meeting:  Meeting called to discuss one or more specific topics; no other topics 
may be discussed at this meeting. 
 
Subsidiary motion:  A motion that disposes of another motion.  Also called a secondary 
motion. 
 
Unfinished business:  Any matters carried over from a previous meeting.  Also includes 
any motions that have been postponed to the current meeting. 
 
Withdraw a motion:  A member takes back a motion he or she made.  This can be done 
until the motion is stated by the chair.  After that, the membership must give permission 
to withdraw. 
 

Page 55 of 73



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        312 ½ North Main Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    January 20, 2015 

RE:    Cobblestone Crossing Sidewalks 
 
 
At the October 27, 2014 council meeting, you conducted a public hearing to consider a request by 
the new owner of the Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision, Don Wienen, for an amendment to the 
annexation agreement for the subdivision.  The amendment would have removed the obligation of 
the developer to install sidewalks along the streets.  The amendment was not successful.  
Alderperson Painter has requested reconsideration of the amendment in order for the council to 
consider a new plan for the installation of sidewalks in Cobblestone Crossing.  
 
Following the council vote in October, residents of Cobblestone Crossing initiated discussions with 
city staff and the developer to find an acceptable resolution to the sidewalk issue.  The goal of the 
residents is for the City to finally accept ownership and maintenance responsibility for the streets, 
street lights, water and sewer systems and storm water systems—the same as in other subdivisions 
in Galena.   
 
After several meetings, our staff, members of the Cobblestone Crossing Property Owners 
Association and Don Wienen, developed the following proposal for the Cobblestone Crossing 
sidewalks and street lighting. 
 

1. Install a sidewalk along the entire length of Cobblestone Boulevard as shown on the 
attached plan.  The sidewalk would be five feet in width except for a short section in front of 
the first duplex (100 and 102 Cobblestone Blvd.).  In this area the sidewalk would be four 
feet wide to fit the existing conditions.  The sidewalk would be installed in phases, generally 
corresponding with the three phases of development set forth in the annexation agreement.  
Phase 1 would be completed in the spring.  The sidewalk in Phases 2 and 3 would be 
installed when those phases of development occur.   

 
2. Install a sidewalk on one side of Woodland Court and Rolling Hill Court.  These sidewalks 

would be installed when those phases of development occur.  The complete sidewalk 
phasing plan is shown on Attachment A. 

Page 56 of 73



2 
 

3. Install the missing street light at the west end of Cobblestone Boulevard and connect all the 
street lights in Phase 1 to a separately metered electrical supply.  The City would provide LED 
bulbs for the five lights.  

 
With this proposal, sidewalks would not be constructed on Country View Court since there are 15 
driveways already installed to residences.  The cross slope on most, if not all, of the driveways is too 
steep to be used for pedestrian crossings.  Constructing new sidewalks through the driveways would 
require the removal of large sections of the driveways to achieve the required grades.  Given the 
construction obstacles, we believe it is reasonable to omit the sidewalk on Country View Court.  This 
is new information that was not presented during the October discussion of the sidewalk issue.   
 
As reported in October, the following items must also be completed by the developer prior to the 
acceptance of the infrastructure by the city.   
 

1. Install three ditch checks at locations as indicated on drawing G10 of the approved 
subdivision plans.  Any of the planned improvements that are determined to cross onto the 
neighboring property would only be completed with the consent of the neighboring 
property owner. 

 
2. Install additional rip‐rap to storm sewer outlets as indicated on drawing G10.  Again, any of 

the planned improvements that are determined to cross onto the neighboring property 
would only be completed with the consent of the neighboring property owner. 

 
3. Prepare a final dedication plat showing the as‐built locations of all the public utilities, 

easements, and right‐of‐ways.   
 
As included in the FY 2016‐20 Capital Improvement Plan, the City would consider installing a 
sidewalk to link the sidewalk on US Route 20 adjacent to Dupaco to Cobblestone Boulevard as early 
as fiscal year 2016‐17.  The construction of this sidewalk would be dependent on available funding.      
 
Since the public hearing to modify the annexation agreement as it pertains to sidewalks has already 
been conducted, the council could take action on the amendment if the item is reconsidered.  The 
attached ordinance and First Addendum to the Cobblestone Crossing Annexation Agreement have 
been prepared for your consideration.  The changes to the sidewalk requirement are stated in both 
documents.  Five affirmative votes are required to adopt the ordinance and to approve the 
amendment. 
 
With the approval of the ordinance and the amendment, the developer expects to complete the 
remaining infrastructure work by the end of June.  Once the work is complete and inspected, a bill 
of sale and an ordinance would be presented for the city to accept ownership and maintenance of 
the infrastructure.   
 
I believe the proposal for installing sidewalks and street lighting represents a good solution 
considering the history of the project and the recent change of ownership of the subdivision. 

Page 57 of 73



Page 58 of 73



1 
 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 0‐15‐ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AMENDMENT TO AN ANNEXATION 
AGREEMENT PREVIOUSLY ENTERED INTO FOR A DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS COBBLESTONE 

CROSSING 

 
   
  WHEREAS, the City of Galena (“City”) and Linda Pluym, Kenneth Pluym, and Rick 
Hochman (“Original Owners”) entered into the Annexation Agreement for the Cobblestone 
Crossing Subdivision (the “Annexation Agreement”) dated April 16, 2003, and  
 
  WHEREAS, all of the rights and responsibilities under the Annexation Agreement have 
since been assigned by the Original Owners to the current owner of the Cobblestone Crossing 
Subdivision, Don Wienen (“Current Owner”); and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Current Owner has petitioned the City to amend the Annexation 
Agreement to permit changes to the requirement for sidewalks in the subdivision; and     
 

WHEREAS, the City and the Current Owner desire to amend the Annexation Agreement; 
and  
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to Notice the City Council conducted a public hearing on October 
27, 2014 at which time it considered the request of the Current Owner to amend the 
Annexation Agreement previously entered into; and 
 

WHEREAS, Article III (C) of the Annexation Agreement presently states as follows: 
 
 “Sidewalks will be required within the subdivision in accordance with City specifications 

and ordinances.  The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Owners and/or Developer 
from any claim or suit for damages, by any party, arising from the design, placement, 
engineering or construction of any such sidewalks required within the subdivision;” and    

 
WHEREAS, the City and the Current Owner agree that Article III (C) of the Annexation 

Agreement shall be amended to state as follows:  
 
 “A sidewalk shall be required along one side of the full length of Cobblestone 

Boulevard, one side of Woodland Court, and one side of Rolling Hill Court, as depicted on the 
plan attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Owners 
and/or Developer from any claim or suit for damages, by any party, arising from the design, 
placement, engineering or construction of any such sidewalks required within the subdivision;” 
and    

Page 59 of 73



2 
 

  
  WHEREAS, by motion adopted by the City Council on January 26, 2015, the Mayor is 
authorized and directed to execute, and the City Clerk is directed to attest the First Addendum 
to the Cobblestone Crossing Annexation Agreement; and  
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and the City Council of the City of 
Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, as follows: 
 

SECTION I:  The recitals set forth herein are incorporated into this Ordinance as if 
restated verbatim. 
 
SECTION II:  That the Mayor be is hereby authorized and directed to execute, and the 
City Clerk is directed to attest, the First Addendum to the Cobblestone Crossing 
Annexation Agreement. 
 
SECTION III:  That the First Addendum to the Cobblestone Crossing Annexation 
Agreement, made a part of this Ordinance, is hereby approved. 
 
SECTION IV:  That this Ordinance be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 
 
SECTION V:  Passed on this 26th day of January, A.D., 2015, in open Council 

 
AYES:        NAYS: 
            
              
 
 
            __________________________________________       
            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR      
 
 
________________________________________ 
ATTEST: MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK  
 

Page 60 of 73



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
FIRST ADDENDUM 
TO THE COBBLESTONE  
CROSSING ANNEXATION  
AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  This First Addendum (“First Addendum”) is entered into as of January ______, 
2015, by and between the City of Galena, a municipal corporation of Jo Daviess County, 
Illinois (the “City”) and Don Wienen (“Current Owner”). 
 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 

  WHEREAS, the City of Galena (“City”) and Linda Pluym, Kenneth Pluym, and Rick 
Hochman (“Original Owners”) entered into the Annexation Agreement for the 
Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision (the “Annexation Agreement”) dated April 16, 2003, 
and  
 
  WHEREAS, all of the rights and responsibilities under the Annexation Agreement 
have since been assigned by the Original Owners to the Current Owner of the 
Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision, Don Wienen; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Current Owner has petitioned the City to amend the Annexation 
Agreement to permit changes to the requirement for sidewalks in the subdivision; and     
 

WHEREAS, the City and the Current Owner desire to amend the Annexation 
Agreement; and  
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to Notice the City Council conducted a public hearing on 
October 27, 2014 at which time it considered the request of the Current Owner to 
amend the Annexation Agreement previously entered into; and 
 

WHEREAS, Article III (C) of the Annexation Agreement presently states as 
follows:  

 

Page 61 of 73



Page 2 of 3 

 

“Sidewalks will be required within the subdivision in accordance with City 
specifications and ordinances.  The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the 
Owners and/or Developer from any claim or suit for damages, by any party, arising from 
the design, placement, engineering or construction of any such sidewalks required 
within the subdivision;” and  

   
WHEREAS, the City and the Current Owner agree that Article III (C) of the 

Annexation Agreement shall be amended to state as follows:  
 
 “A sidewalk shall be required along one side of the full length of Cobblestone 

Boulevard, one side of Woodland Court, and one side of Rolling Hill Court, as depicted 
on the plan attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The City agrees to hold harmless and 
indemnify the Owners and/or Developer from any claim or suit for damages, by any 
party, arising from the design, placement, engineering or construction of any such 
sidewalks required within the subdivision;” and    
   

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements 
between the parties, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree 
as follows: 
 

1. The recitals set forth herein are incorporated into this First Addendum as 
if restated verbatim. 

 
2. A sidewalk shall be required along one side of the full length of 

Cobblestone Boulevard, one side of Woodland Court, and one side of 
Rolling Hill Court, as depicted on the plan attached hereto as Exhibit A.  
The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Owners and/or 
Developer from any claim or suit for damages, by any party, arising from 
the design, placement, engineering or construction of any such sidewalks 
required within the subdivision. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Second Addendum 

as of the date set forth above, and, by so executing, each of the parties warrants that it 
possesses full right and authority to enter into this Second Addendum. 
 
 

          CITY OF GALENA, an Illinois 
          Municipal Corporation 
 
 
 
          BY: ___________________________ 
            Terry Renner, Its Mayor 
 

Page 62 of 73



Page 3 of 3 

 

Attest to: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 
 
 
 

DON WIENEN, owner: 
             
 
            BY: _______________________________ 
                
 
 
            ATTEST TO: ________________________ 
                
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Joseph Nack: 
City Attorney 
City of Galena 
101 Green Street 
Galena, IL  61036 
TEL:  (815) 777‐1050 
FAX:  (815) 777‐3083 
 
 

Page 63 of 73



Galena-Jo Daviess County Historical Society & Museum, 211 S. Bench St., Galena, Illinois  61036 

                                     Phone 815-777-9129        Fax 815-777-9131            

                    www.galenahistorymuseum.org       info@galenahistorymuseum.org 

Nancy Breed 

   Executive Director 

 
 

Board of Directors 

 

  Steve Coates               

President 

 

 William Butts                      

Vice President 

 

Robert Eby             

Treasurer 

 

 Vickie Gratton             

Secretary  

 

Chris Allendorf 

 

Marge Cooke 

 

Bonnie Cox 

 

Christine Harris 

 

Bill Karberg 

 

Mary Jo Losey 

 

Kathleen Morgan 

 

 

 

MEMO: February 4, 2015 

 

TO:  Mayor Terry Renner and the Galena City Council Members 

  City Administrator Mark Moran 

 

FROM:  Nancy Breed, Executive Director 

 

RE:  Naming of the Pedestrian Footbridge over the Galena River    

  in Honor of H. H. Kohlsaat during the April 2015 Civil War Sesquicentennial Events 

 

Our nation is approaching a historically significant date: April 9, 2015, the sesquicentennial of the 

end of the Civil War, when Robert E. Lee surrendered to Ulysses S. Grant at Appomattox Court 

House, Virginia. That moment is immortalized in the iconic Thomas Nast painting, ‘Peace in Union,’ 

on display at the Galena & U.S. Grant Museum on Bench Street.  

 

The painting’s donor, Herman H. Kohlsaat, will be featured in multiple original theatrical perfor-

mances at Turner Hall. Kohlsaat grew up in Galena until the age of 12 when his family moved to 

Chicago. He retained fond memories of his home town throughout his lifetime. As a successful busi-

nessman and philanthropist, Kohlsaat donated the Grant Statue in Grant Park, and he hired Nast to 

create the painting which cost $10,000 in 1895 ($375,000 in today’s dollars).  

 

With local awareness of Kohlsaat high during our April festivities, the Society board of directors  

believes April 2015 would be an appropriate time to honor the man. At it’s December 2014      

meeting, the Society board of directors approved a Resolution encouraging the City of Galena 

to recognize H. H. Kohlsaat for his significant and lasting contributions. 

 

In considering an appropriate infrastructure to name, the pedestrian footbridge over the Galena River 

(built in 1980 with public grant funds) seems appropriate. It connects Grant Park to the historic 

downtown area. Symbolically, it ‘bridges’ the past with the present. A mockup sign is attached for 

your consideration, including price quotes from local suppliers. The Society is pleased to offer $500 

from our anticipated event ticket sales toward the sign’s cost. 

 

We have been in communication with descendants of the Kohlsaat and Nast families to invite them to 

Galena in April. A sign unveiling would be an appropriate addition to the festivities.  

 

Galena thrives on its history and the philanthropy of people like Herman H. Kohlsaat. We             

respectfully encourage your approval to honor him in this manner. 

Page 64 of 73



MOCKUP OF POSSIBLE GALENA RIVER FOOTBRIDGE SIGN; 18” wide by 24” high;                

to be secured on the metal lamppost to the left of the staircase on the city side of the bridge. 

Option A: Bronze—Estimated weight 52#; estimated cost $1,500 

Option B: Aluminum—Estimated weight 17#; estimated cost $1,125 

Page 65 of 73



 

H.H. KOHLSAAT BRIDGE 

********* 

******** 

Not to Scale 

Page 66 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 1/27/2015 - 2/28/2015 Feb 05, 2015  08:53AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
020115 1 Invoice PHONE 02/01/2015 272.82 01.21.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 272.82

BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854)
0160021-IN 1 Invoice MISC. VEHICLE 01/22/2015 128.66 01.41.613.12

Total BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854): 128.66

BREATHING AIR SYSTEMS DIVISION (119243)
AT50016-2 1 Invoice AIRTEST QUALITY 01/15/2015 350.00 22.22.613.00

Total BREATHING AIR SYSTEMS DIVISION (119243): 350.00

BUSINESS TELEPHONE SUPPLY (453)
994031 1 Invoice POLICE DEPARTMENT R 01/12/2015 177.25 01.13.820.00

Total BUSINESS TELEPHONE SUPPLY (453): 177.25

CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588)
172765 1 Invoice GARAGE DOOR MAINTE 01/06/2015 38.50 01.41.511.00

Total CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588): 38.50

CHIEF LAW ENFORCEMENT SUPPLY (119909)
182286 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/LORI 12/11/2014 59.48 01.21.471.15
208288 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/NATHAN 01/26/2015 4.99 01.21.471.15

Total CHIEF LAW ENFORCEMENT SUPPLY (119909): 64.47

CONMAT, INC. (1187)
94197 1 Invoice RIVERBANK/BIKE TRAIL 01/20/2015 116.86 01.41.614.04
94224 1 Invoice CHIPS 01/28/2015 510.48 15.41.614.01

Total CONMAT, INC. (1187): 627.34

DECKER SUPPLY CO., INC. (867)
885473 1 Invoice SIGNS 01/22/2015 47.54 01.41.652.04

Total DECKER SUPPLY CO., INC. (867): 47.54

DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339)
907849 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 02/03/2015 225.00 01.13.511.06

Total DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339): 225.00

DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631)
101158 1 Invoice RECHARGE EXTINGUISH 12/05/2014 215.80 22.22.513.00

Total DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631): 215.80

FARM & FLEET/SYNCB (120040)
0201115 1 Invoice CLOTHING 02/01/2015 105.88 01.41.471.09

Page 67 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 1/27/2015 - 2/28/2015 Feb 05, 2015  08:53AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

0201115 2 Invoice TOOLS 02/01/2015 169.94 01.41.653.00

Total FARM & FLEET/SYNCB (120040): 275.82

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00040768 1 Invoice PUBLIC NOTICE 01/23/2015 51.30 01.16.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 51.30

GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84)
020115 1 Invoice FINANCE-LAUNDRY SER 02/01/2015 8.00 01.13.654.00
020115 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT 02/01/2015 25.00 22.22.651.00
020115 3 Invoice POLICE DEPARTMENT 02/01/2015 30.00 01.21.651.00
020115 4 Invoice TURNER HALL-RUG SER 02/01/2015 27.00 58.54.654.01

Total GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84): 90.00

GALL'S, INC. (712)
002975613 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/NATHAN 01/13/2015 16.90 01.21.471.15

Total GALL'S, INC. (712): 16.90

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
020115 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 6.74 01.13.511.08
020115 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 1.52 01.21.651.00
020115 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 47.20 01.41.511.00
020115 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 6.91 01.41.613.06
020115 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 6.64 01.41.613.12
020115 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 171.96 01.41.652.00
020115 7 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 73.29 01.41.653.00
020115 8 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 2.51 17.52.514.00
020115 9 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 12.26 17.52.652.00
020115 10 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 10.23 22.22.611.00
020115 11 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 57.40 22.22.613.00
020115 12 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 32.86 22.22.652.00
020115 13 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 4.03 22.22.844.04
020115 14 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 32.47 58.54.511.00
020115 15 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 4.60 58.54.511.00
020115 16 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 02/01/2015 6.29 59.55.511.01

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 476.91

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
62539 1 Invoice HOSTING FEES 01/01/2015 85.00 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 85.00

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
020115 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 02/01/2015 240.00 01.13.511.07
020115 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  02/01/2015 225.00 01.13.511.08

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 465.00

Page 68 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 1/27/2015 - 2/28/2015 Feb 05, 2015  08:53AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

HILLINGER, SUSAN (120050)
020415 1 Invoice REFUND 02/04/2015 70.00 01.11.912.00

Total HILLINGER, SUSAN (120050): 70.00

IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967)
T1521281 1 Invoice IN-SQUAD COMPUTER C 01/20/2015 232.60 01.21.542.00

Total IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967): 232.60

ILEAS (118922)
020115 1 Invoice 2015 ILEAS CONFERENC 02/01/2015 400.00 01.21.563.00

Total ILEAS (118922): 400.00

ILLINOIS FIRE STORE (119034)
33362 1 Invoice FOLD A TANK LINER 01/22/2015 879.62 22.22.840.00

Total ILLINOIS FIRE STORE (119034): 879.62

INTERGRAPH CORPORATION SGI DIVISION (533)
121514 2 Adjustmen GEO MEDIA RENEWAL 12/15/2014 552.00- 01.45.532.01

Total INTERGRAPH CORPORATION SGI DIVISION (533): 552.00-

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
020115 1 Invoice ELECTRIC 02/01/2015 6,255.59 15.41.572.00
020115 2 Invoice CITY HALL/ELECTRIC 02/01/2015 678.88 01.13.571.01
020115 3 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 02/01/2015 666.68 01.21.571.01
020115 4 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 02/01/2015 41.72 12.10.571.01
020115 5 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 02/01/2015 121.22 17.52.571.01
020115 6 Invoice FLOOD/ELECTRIC 02/01/2015 433.63 20.25.576.01
020115 7 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 02/01/2015 218.19 22.22.576.01
020115 8 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 02/01/2015 551.84 58.54.571.01
020115 9 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS 02/01/2015 30.95 01.41.571.01

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 8,998.70

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
020115 1 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 02/01/2015 200.12 01.21.538.00
020115 2 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 02/01/2015 100.00 22.22.538.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 300.12

JULIE, INC. (788)
2015-0632 1 Invoice JULIE LOCATES 01/08/2015 686.51 01.41.549.00

Total JULIE, INC. (788): 686.51

KLINDERA, HANNAH (120051)
012215 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 01/22/2015 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total KLINDERA, HANNAH (120051): 200.00

Page 69 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 1/27/2015 - 2/28/2015 Feb 05, 2015  08:53AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

KURT, ANN (118988)
012815 1 Invoice TRANSCRIPTION FEES 01/28/2015 65.00 01.21.652.03

Total KURT, ANN (118988): 65.00

LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MGMT. INC (376)
1343164-201 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION PROGR 01/31/2015 44.00 01.21.652.03

Total LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MGMT. INC (376): 44.00

LIFELINE AUDIO VIDEO TECH. (118955)
57121 1 Invoice LIGHT BOARD/CONSOLE  01/23/2015 346.00 58.54.511.00

Total LIFELINE AUDIO VIDEO TECH. (118955): 346.00

LITHO SPECIALISTS (63)
IS24859 1 Invoice W-2 FORMS 01/09/2015 271.75 01.11.552.00

Total LITHO SPECIALISTS (63): 271.75

LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127)
3693 1 Invoice EXCAVATION TO FIND W 12/30/2014 1,079.82 51.42.929.00

Total LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127): 1,079.82

MENARDS (280)
68173 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 01/30/2015 143.80 01.41.652.00

Total MENARDS (280): 143.80

METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775)
020115 1 Invoice DENTAL INSURANCE 02/01/2015 1,763.00 01.13.451.01
020115 2 Invoice LIFE INSURANCE 02/01/2015 248.96 01.13.452.00

Total METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775): 2,011.96

MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38)
287248 1 Invoice COPIER LEASE 01/21/2015 305.70 01.21.512.03

Total MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38): 305.70

MILLER-BRADFORD & RISBERG (1001)
IK04025 1 Invoice ENDLOADER REPAIRS 12/15/2014 92.99 01.41.613.09

Total MILLER-BRADFORD & RISBERG (1001): 92.99

MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC. (119653)
5289198 1 Invoice 2011 INT. DUMP 01/16/2015 258.70 01.41.613.06

Total MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC. (119653): 258.70

MONTGOMERY TIMMERMAN, INC. (119350)
020215 1 Invoice CONSTRUCTION 02/02/2015 56,800.50 01.13.820.00

Page 70 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 1/27/2015 - 2/28/2015 Feb 05, 2015  08:53AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total MONTGOMERY TIMMERMAN, INC. (119350): 56,800.50

MORTON SALT, INC. (120038)
5400663668 1 Invoice SALT 01/20/2015 2,260.74 01.41.614.07
5400665487 1 Invoice SALT 01/21/2015 2,249.32 01.41.614.07
5400667256 1 Invoice SALT 01/22/2015 2,241.42 01.41.614.07
5400669014 1 Invoice SALT 01/23/2015 2,249.32 01.41.614.07
5400669015 1 Invoice SALT 01/23/2015 2,238.79 01.41.614.07

Total MORTON SALT, INC. (120038): 11,239.59

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812)
1646611261 1 Invoice MONTHLY RATE FOR ST 01/01/2015 10.00 01.21.549.00

Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812): 10.00

NICOR (151)
020115 1 Invoice MARKETHOUSE RESTRO 02/01/2015 136.84 01.13.511.06
020115 2 Invoice POOL-GAS 02/01/2015 395.20 59.55.571.02

Total NICOR (151): 532.04

NICOR (F) (118924)
020115 1 Invoice CITY HALL-GAS 02/01/2015 235.29 01.13.571.05
020115 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 02/01/2015 83.49 01.41.571.05
020115 3 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT-GAS 02/01/2015 91.57 22.22.571.05

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 410.35

ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574)
020115 1 Invoice PEST CONTROL SERVIC 02/01/2015 83.15 01.13.511.01
020115 2 Invoice PEST CONTROL/POOL 02/01/2015 200.00 59.55.511.02

Total ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574): 283.15

PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163)
020315 1 Invoice MEALS/TRAINING 02/03/2015 34.10 01.21.562.00
020315 2 Invoice POSTAGE 02/03/2015 12.65 01.21.551.00

Total PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163): 46.75

QUILL CORP. (686)
9842626 1 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES-ADMI 01/23/2015 163.91 01.13.651.02
9913081 1 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES-ADMI 01/23/2015 7.99 01.13.651.02

Total QUILL CORP. (686): 171.90

ROCK RIVER SERVICE CO. (118915)
15-B76585 1 Invoice NEW PORTABLE RADIO  01/20/2015 139.00 01.21.651.00

Total ROCK RIVER SERVICE CO. (118915): 139.00

Page 71 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 1/27/2015 - 2/28/2015 Feb 05, 2015  08:53AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
0434798 1 Invoice ALARM MONITORING 01/28/2015 27.00 01.13.552.00

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 27.00

TASER INTERNATIONAL (119762)
SI1387154 1 Invoice TASER CARTRIDGES 01/29/2015 734.16 01.21.563.00

Total TASER INTERNATIONAL (119762): 734.16

TRI-STATE SCREEN PRINTING (119187)
13404 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/lori 02/04/2015 10.50 01.21.471.15

Total TRI-STATE SCREEN PRINTING (119187): 10.50

US CELLULAR (92)
020115 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 02/01/2015 37.78 01.41.552.00
020115 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 02/01/2015 73.54 01.11.552.00
020115 3 Invoice FIRE DEPT./CELL PHONE 02/01/2015 14.85 22.22.552.00
020115 4 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 02/01/2015 79.40 01.21.552.01

Total US CELLULAR (92): 205.57

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
594708 1 Invoice CLEANING SUPPLIES 01/29/2015 143.51 01.13.511.08

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 143.51

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
012715 1 Invoice DEPOT REPAIRS 01/27/2015 1,235.00 01.41.614.04
020115 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITO 02/01/2015 110.00 01.41.511.01

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 1,345.00

WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC., INC. (119914)
20693 1 Invoice DESIGN 01/29/2015 4,768.07 41.61.860.07

Total WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC., INC. (119914): 4,768.07

WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666)
13237 1 Invoice POLICE DEPARTMENT R 02/01/2015 356.25 01.13.820.00

Total WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666): 356.25

WSG INC., DBA R & L GAS MART (119503)
012715 1 Invoice GAS 01/27/2015 192.86 01.41.655.00

Total WSG INC., DBA R & L GAS MART (119503): 192.86

Grand Totals: 96,859.78

Report GL Period Summary

Page 72 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 1/27/2015 - 2/28/2015 Feb 05, 2015  08:53AM

Vendor number hash: 3721259
Vendor number hash - split: 4204956
Total number of invoices: 62
Total number of transactions: 100

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 96,859.78 96,859.78

Grand Totals: 96,859.78 96,859.78

Page 73 of 73


	Agenda 02.09.15
	01.0047 Aldrich Guest House Liquor License
	02.0048 Minutes cc012615
	03.0049 Sprint Into Spring
	04.0050 Corkless Wine Festival
	05.0033 Downtown Sidewalks Report
	020915b
	Downtown Sidewalks Report Old
	012615b
	Downtown Sidewalks Report
	Galena Sidewalk Report
	Exhibit Appendix
	00075014 Phases
	00075014 Existing Conditions Exhibit - new point system
	00075014 Deficiency Exhibit
	00075014 Quantities by Block




	06.0034 Rules of Procedure
	rules memo
	Galena Rules of Procedure 2015 Amended

	07.0053 Cobblestone Crossing Ordinance
	cobblestone memo
	Cobblestone Sidewalks JAN2015
	cobblestone ordinance
	cobblestone agreement

	08.0054 Kohlsaat Bridge Naming
	Kohlsaat Bridge Naming Request
	Kohlsaat Bridge Mockup
	Kohlsaat Lamppost Mockup

	09.0056 Warrants 02.09.15



